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Introduction

For centuries, the ruling element in the Ottoman Empire, the Turks, were
engaged only in the administration of the country, leaving the economic field
to the Christians of the country. Armenians, Greeks and other subject nations
of the empire worked for centuries to keep the country’s economy
prosperous'. After the Crimean war of 1853—1856, when the Ottoman Empire
began to strengthen its relations with Europe and modernize its economy,
Armenians were ready to play an important role between the empire and
Europe. Armenian merchants knew European languages and the newest
methods of European trade. That is why they were able to become mediators
of Turkish—European trade and occupy an influential position in Turkish—
European trade’.

Armenian trading houses

Constantinople was the most important economic center of the Ottoman
Empire and the country’s largest port. At the beginning of the XX century, it
was connected by steamship routes to the country’s major economic centers,
major European cities, and industrial centers’. At the beginning of 1914,
Constantinople had a population of 1.250.000°. As of 1911, the city’s
Armenian population was 161.000 living in 38 local districts’.

* Submitted as of 12. X. 2023, confirmed by the post—graduate’s supervisor
Doct. of Sc. in Hist. A. Maruqyan on 19. III. 2024, affirmed for publication on 10.
VII. 2024.
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Many Armenian trading houses of Constantinople were considered
unbeatable institutions®. Numerous Armenian merchants, dissatisfied with the
selection of goods presented by Europeans, established connections with
European industrial centers and trading companies. Many of them even settled
in European cities establishing offices and branches’. Thus, the Frankyan
family owned the company “Frankyan and Son” operating in Manchester® and
the trading house named “H. and K. Mkr. Frankean Brotherhood” in London’.
“Hetum Setyan Trading House” had branches in Filipe (Plovdiv) and
Ruschuk'®. “Mihran Chivilekyan and Company” was a steamship and
customs agency that performed customs and insurance functions, imported
and exported various goods. The company’s branches were located in Russia
and Romania''.

Armenian trading houses of Constantinople carried out various activities,
importing and exporting commercial goods, engaging in wholesale and retail
sales, cargo transportation, customs and insurance operations. For example,
the “Vatan” and “Araks” insurance companies, whose capital amounted to
150.000 Ottoman gold coins'?, operated under the management of “M.
Arevyan and Company”, which was engaged in the import and export of
various commercial goods. “G. and P. Gulbenkian Company” was involved in
maritime accidents, fire, and life insurance operations, customs collection, and
the transportation of various goods by steamships'®. There were trading
houses that supplied necessary goods to state institutions. Yervand Terzyan
supplied necessary goods to the royal shipyard, steamship facilities and state
industrial agencies'*. Many Armenian importing merchants were agents of
major European manufacturers and/or their only representatives in the
Ottoman Empire. “Barsegh Tekeyan Son Trading House” sold cars, trucks
and car and bicycle tires. It was the agent of the “Pirelli” company in the
Ottoman Empire'’. A. Galenter was the sole representative of the English
trading houses “Chappell” and “BSA” in the country'®. Yervand Peyazjian
was the general representative of the English factory named “The Bradford
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Gas Engine C*”, a manufacturer of engines in the Ottoman Empire and
Bulgaria'”.

“Arslanyan Brothers and Company”, a commercial company, was the main
shareholder and operator of the Kemleyik city’s coal mines in the state of
Bursa. It imported and exported various commercial goods, had offices in
New York and Marseille, represented the American “Atlantic Steamship
Company”, acted as the agent for the “Atria” and “Levande” marine agencies,
and the “London” insurance company'®.

In 1857, the “Mkrtich and Hovhannes Muradyan Brothers” company was
the first in the Ottoman Empire to import modern farming machines and tools.
The Muradians supplied the most important products for the Ministry of
Agriculture”. In 1900, the “Kopernik Khachaturian Trading House” had
branches in Baku, Batumi, Tiflis, and Hamburg. This institution was involved
in the import and export of various goods, conducting both wholesale and
retail trade, as well as managing customs and insurance functions. Addi-
tionally, it operated a sizable grocery store for transit goods and facilitated the
transportation of commercial goods through steamships and automobiles®.

Mkrtych Frenkyan, a privileged arms dealer in the Ottoman Empire, was
the sole representative in the country for English and Belgian factories that
produced bicycles and motorcycles. He procured necessary goods for the
English, German, and French steamship and railway companies in
Constantinople®'. Frenkyan primarily sold various types of weapons, an
operation that was authorized by the Ottoman Navy**. In his shops, one could
also find various types of electronic devices and telephones®, French wines®*
and other products. Frenkyan once published a 250-page trilingual catalog
with 1000 illustrations showcasing the products available in his stores™.

The commercial institution of the wealthy brothers Ephraim and Maruke
Ibranosyan was a prominent entity among Western Armenians from the 19th
to the first decades of the 20th. Over 5.000 Armenian families were
associated with the Ibranosyan institution?®, which boasted 52 branches in
the provinces and 5 agencies in Europe?’. Constantinople was considered
their commercial center™. The brothers also owned the Armenian steamship
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company “Ibranosyan Brothers”, with routes from Constantinople to Ine-
bolu—Samsun—Kerasun—Ordu—Batumi, Constantinople—Izmir—Mersin, Cons-
tantinople-Bandrma, Constantinople-Mutania—Kemleik, and Constantinop-
le-Nicomedia. Their fleet included the steamships “Amasia”, “Trapizon”,
“Samsun”, “Kerasun”, and “Turan””.

The Armenian women of Constantinople also took part in the economic
life of the city. Ladies H. Voskerchyan®, Tigranyan®', Ch. Kestchyan?, T.
Huseinchyan® and others, who were conducting commercial activities,
were famous in the city for their shops. In the periodical press, there were a
large number of advertisements presenting the activities of Armenian artisan
women. They were mostly tailors and embroiderers, who aside from their
professional activities, conducted tailoring workshops. Many of them had
received professional education in Europe and gained experience there*.
Efforts aimed at increasing the role of women in the economy were made
primarily by the Armenian women of Constantinople. In addition to
providing jobs, the workshop opened by the “Armenian Women’s Union”
was also useful with their charity initiatives for Armenians in need®. In
1908, as a result of the severe economic conditions created by the drought in
the provinces, a large number of emigrants appeared in Constantinople. In
1909, in order to help the hungry and at the initiative of Constantinople’s
noble Armenian ladies, the “Labor House” was founded. The management,
taking advantage of the European experience, decided to give the needy
people a chance to work instead of providing them with benefits®.
According to the regulations of the “Labor House”, it did not collect money
from either workers or employers®’. On the initiative of the Department of
the Labor House, an ironing shop, a laundry®®, a linen workshop®, sewing
workshop™ and a Vocational School were opened*'.

Founded in 1910, the branch of the Ottoman Bank — “The Ottoman
Commercial Bank” was the first Armenian bank. Its founders and members
of the administrative board were the famous Armenian coin holders and
merchants of Constantinople. It had a denomination of 100,000 Ottoman

29 ”‘w:l_ule 78 2012, 95:

30 «Z;ull[l.uml.ud'l.upm», 1. XII. 1920:

3 <<Ziull[lllll1ullfl.ll[1u1>>, 3. 1. 1920:

32 <<zl.uil[uuzt[lu11ull» (ll (””lll”")’ 12. L 1908:
P «Ppoquiigfpni», 14. —27. VI. 1919:
oy wybw . 1922, 170, « Fudwlul», 5-28. 11. 1912:
P «Ugunnudwpm», 22. XII — 5. 1. 1909:
 « durdwiimly», 26 XIT 8. 1. 1909:

7 Yuin g pp. 1909, 13:

S « udwiimly», 20. XI. 1909:

39 <<u:lluuuu1full1u1», 13-26. VI. 1914:

40 <<u:lluuuu1full1u1», 13-26. X. 1911:

4 <<ﬂ[u_[¢7ulfl[uu>> (ll Wnlﬁu), 5-18. 1. 1913:



The economic activity of the Armenians of Constantinople ... 7

gold coins and was controlled by a charter consisting of 47 articles*”. This
bank greatly facilitated the implementation of monetary operations for
Armenian merchants and supported the rapprochement of relations between
Armenian and Armenian businessmen of Constantinople operating in foreign
countries. The Armenian economic companies established in Constantinople
and the commercial offices established to provide various services to
Armenian entrepreneurs contributed their share to the development of the
Armenian economy in Constantinople.

Armenian khans®

The khans operating in Constantinople were commercial centers that
included many shops, workshops, grocery stores, publishing houses, offices
with their serving canteens, and various household services. Rooms that
served as inns were also found here*. Khans were mostly built by the most
famous Armenian architects of the time: Hovsep Aznavour, Levon Nafilyan,
Aram Tahtachyan, and others®. The owners of the Armenian khans in
Constantinople were prominent figures or families in the economic life of the
city. Sargis Gnachyan was one of the biggest businessmen engaged in textile
manufacturing, and was considered one of the “gods” of Constantinople’s
textile manufacturing®®. “Kulpenkyan Brothers and Company”, owned by the
Kulpenkyan family, carried out extensive commercial activities, having
branches in New York, representatives in Persia, Tiflis, and almost all major
cities of the Ottoman Empire’’. The “Azaryan and Son” trading company,
owned by the Azaryan family, had a great reputation in the international
trading market. With their own ships “Armenia” and “Massachusetts”, they
exported various products produced in the country and were involved in arms
sales. Members of the Azaryan family, wealthy Armenians of Constantinople,
traveled on their own steamship “Ararat™®. The Azaryan family owned 8
estates, palaces, and houses®.

Information about the 49 khans of Constantinople that were owned by
Armenians was collected mainly from Constantinople’s Armenian
advertisements and various publications. This list is naturally not complete
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because not all newspapers are available, and not all businessmen have
published notices about their activities in the periodical press.

ARMENIAN KHANS
Th f th
Ne € nilﬁfno © Address The source
1 | Azaryan Khan Voyvota ;311"6[‘“;\1[_;‘[;‘ ll5>6(l| ),
l.l.llru.ﬁ.ll.l.l - . VH.
2 | Azaryan Khan Theater street of Bera ;g;)g >, 3~ 16
Ty N ,
3 | Aznavour Khan Bera, Kalata Sera ;92;[' N:u 4»66'(11 nibw)
Alalemchyan Meitancheg
bk :
4 (Alalemchi) khan (Pahcheqabu) St iy, 1921, 8
Aleanak (Aleanakyan) “Annuaire Oriental”,
> | khan Kutufhane 1914, 1294,
. U.pkok .10 s
6 | Altbarmagyan Khan Chichek Bazar ;3 E 2L6 L‘ggﬁ $05' if)
<<c]‘nr|_n|.|_nL[|rl_t| QLI.IJ(l.IF__
7 | Astarchyan Khan Eski Zaptie drunfusiadp» (4. Nappu),
27. 11—12. 1II. 1921:
A of , 26. XL
8 | Arapyan Khan Galataia ;92gammm e
9 | Ardaryan Khan Pahcheqabu «umnnudy», 26. VIL 1922:
. duly», 1922,
10 | Garagashyan Khan Mahmoutie Ave ;ffl;% Flnglwll»
U. uf ,12 - 25
11 | Gasapyan Khan Pahcheqabu <_< VtILImllngull Z;'['m >
Upbikpp», 25. X — 7. X1
12 | Gavafyan Khan Galatia TQOQ'L L&
Gnachyan (Knachyan) . . «Bulpunnunfwpin», 29. VI
13 Khan Sirkechi 1919:
) , 13 - 26.
14 | Gevorg Bey Khan Yuxek Galtrm ;}uﬁ;ﬁm >, 13 =26
15 | Gevorg Bey Khan Galatia Puyumupbuis. 1887, 53:
Suiinudy», 13-26. VIL
16 | Guyumchyan Khan Galatia fgiz iy, 13-26
ﬁ.l (11] &u.l opwgn
17 | Esayan Khan Palekhane ;&)51 47[15’ L ormgnyg>,
l.l.lil (11 il . H'
18 | Topalyan Khan Sultanhamam ;9&05,[' iy, 15
19 | Izmilyan Khan Mahmupasha & hupufuis», 1922, Ne 4, 66:
Lrpupd
20 | Lulechyan Khan Murbuchchilar ;9[:05%11[7'6#[ orugnyg>,
The address of the
Erandun b .
21 | Khastakhane Khan khan is not mentioned ;5141 I 1;51;: (- M),
in the source - )
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. A uf , 12. VL
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<<c]‘nr|_n|.|_nL[|rl_t| Qu.l.]illl
24 | Kyulpenkyan Khan Sirkechi Iskelesi — drunfuwinly», 29. - 11.
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25 | Kyumushyan Khan Uzun Charsh «Usphukpp», 9. IX. 1890:
26 | Halachyan Khan Galatia Puyumuybuin. 1887, 57:
'k . 3,
27 | Hakobyan Khan Chagmagqchlar 13];164 wl-Uhupmy. 191
28 | Hovakimyan Khan Galatia ECEZL!» (4 Argpu), 12.
Manuk Oghlu Khan <<Cfl.lrl_u.|[|&u1|.l opugn g,
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ﬁ.l Ly &u.l opwgn
30 | Merchanov Khan Meltanchyg ;5'051 4[%7‘ 't opmgnyg>,
ﬁ.l L) &I.I.l opwgn
31 | Merchimekchian Khan | Eski Zaptie ;9%51 4$7’ U ermgmyy>,
wnf wiluly >, - . V.
32 | Muratyan Khan Chagmagchilar ;gio I, 2 —15
Lk I - 5. V.
33 | Noratunkyan Khan Galatia El)](‘)[é Le» 23 5
34 Yusufyan Khan Finchancellar “Tarih ve Toplum” (Istanbul),
Yogushu 1994, Ne 128, 69-73.
35 | Checheyan Khan Galatia Zg.mpmh:[mll»’ 1910, N 2
AT ]
36 | Pasmachyan Khan Eski Zaptie ;&)5'}238‘“[[ orHgnIg>,
g . Mn-
37 | Pejitian Khan Galatia Eu‘)f’ X 1000, » (.
<<l]t|'l.||.no>> (ll q|n|l1u), 23.
38 | Setyan Khan Sultanhamam 1L 1910:
A d o
39 | Seghbos Khan Bershembe Bazaar f&)gtz%ell rrgryg>,
40 | Sepuhyan Khan Chagmagchilar «Uinuwon», 19. IV, 1921:
of I -
41 | Simonyan Khan Gara Mustafa—65 gul‘tl;;;{;l >, 24
42 <<LnLuu.|[|&u.||.l>> (l-] qlnlbu),
Swachyan Khan Sultanhamam 9-99.1.1912:
L l.l.lil nﬁ.l - .
43 | Stampolyan Khan Pahchegabu Fpi[;)l[(l) e, 16 =29
44 St. Prkich National Helvach «Lurpupduly  opumgnyg»,
khan of the hospital 1905, 480:
Temirchypashyan « E_‘h rl_m[l&u.lll opiugn g >,
45 Khan Gara Mustafa—73 1905, 481:
U . .
46 | Tigranyan Khan Sultanhamam Chugris (4 Anfu), 7

VI—20. VIL 1909:
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<<['_‘url_u.|[|&u.l|.l opiugn jg »,
47 | Kyuchukyan Khan Sultanhamam 1905, 478:
f . XL
48 | Kyurqchipashian Khan | Eskikyumruk fgggl}mmm g, 5
Yeni Jami, Chichek «Ppopwlis» (4. Najpu), 9.
49 | Fantglyan Khan Bazar XII. 1906:

In addition to the Khans, Armenian businessmen of Constantinople owned
many hotels, apartment buildings for rent, restaurants, cafes, pubs, parks,
gyms, cinemas and other profitable properties to enrich their economy.

Armenian craftsmanship of Constantinople

Many crafts that flourished in the Ottoman Empire and brought glory to
the country are mainly the result of the labor of the Armenian creative
mind®. Jewelry was the monopoly of the Armenians in the market of
Constantinople. The part of the closed marketplace dedicated to jewelers and
the khans’ workshops and jewelry shops around it were almost entirely in
the hands of Armenian jewelers. The picture was the same in other districts
of the city’'. The Armenian enamellers, creating noble and beautiful images
on enamel, perfected this craft so much that it was called Armenian®*.

Tailoring was one of the favorite crafts of the Armenians. European clothes
entered the country’s cities in the early 19th century through the Armenians
and Greeks. The Armenians were the masters of disseminating English
fashion. They fulfilled the orders of foreign merchants and even the
government. In 1911, Mirchanyan opened a sewing workshop for European
clothes in Constantinople, producing tailcoats and tuxedos, eliminating the
need to go to Paris to buy such clothes™. Tailors Baghdasar Zhamkochyan,
Hakob Abrahamyan®, Onnik Mkhchyan’’, M. and K. Shahnazaryan
brothers®®, Harutyun Gonelyan®, H. Trchunyan, T. Petrosyan® and others
received professional education in American and European cities, participated
in various international competitions, and won medals and prizes.

The woman'’s taste and creativity appeared in embroidery and lacework.
Armenian women of Constantinople created noble and intricate works,
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embroidering with chain stitch, which Europe called “Armenian fabric”. The
blankets, towels, and bedding with double-sided embroidery made by
Constantinople Armenian women resembled paintings. Europe knows the
elegant and intricate laces created by Armenian masters under the name
“Armenian lace”. Armenian women of Constantinople sewed and decorated
the clothes of the royal women®'. A large number of embroidery workshops
operated in Constantinople among which those of Mannik Hanemyan®,
Annik Talyan®, “Meghu™®, and Bera’s®> workshops were famous. Siphon
Jeevan gave a big boost to the embroidery business by establishing a large
oriental embroidery factory employing 2,000 embroiderers®®. Threads
necessary for embroidery were provided by the gold, silver, silk thread
manufacturing factory owned by him®’.

Armenian shoemakers stood out for their quality products. In pursuit of
innovation and improvement of work, Armenian shoemakers began to occupy
leading positions in this arena and even established factories. The shoe factories
of Kozmos Pelikchayan® and Poghos Minasyan® operated in Constantinople.
The shoe workshops of Zareh Zakaryan’, Karapet Grigoryan’' and “Nor
Haykakan™’? were famous in the city. The vast majority of cobblers of
Constantinople were pilgrims from the villages of Everek and Fenesse in
Caesarea, who worked in more than 100 rooms of Chatal Khan”.

Electricians with professional education in Europe, who were mostly
Armenians, had the opportunity to install and repair modern electronic
equipment: telephones, elevators, engines, cars. Nakhnikyan brothers’™, A.
Andranikyan”, Hayk Partizpanyan®, H. Kerestechian’’ and others had
opened their workshops and offered their services.

Constantinople’s Armenian Advertisements and notices representing the
activities of a large number of Armenian-owned photo booths, hair salons,
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beauty salons, iron shops, and workshops of craftsmen who repair various
household items were constantly present on the pages of newspapers and
magazines.

The activities of Armenian industrialists of Constantinople

They were able to enter the field of industrial enterprises in a short period
of time because the nature of capital was gradually changing in the 19th, and
commercial capital was transformed into industrial capital. Many Armenian
merchants brought European equipment and machinery to the country and
started to organize the production of goods with European quality and
appearance’™. All this is vividly expressed in the activities of tea trading
companies “K. Yavruyan and Son”” and “Hovhannes Isagulyan Son™*’,
which imported tea from China, Japan, and the island of Java. Later, they
joined forces to establish a large tin can factory equipped with the latest
European equipment and producing 34,000 tin cans per day®'. Cardboard
boxes for tea, lokhum, halwa, coffee, cigarette paper, lighting lamps, buckets,
water pots, and other household items were also produced here™. This
company with its products in 1905 participated in Bursa’s annual exhibition
and was awarded a certificate of honor, and in 1906, it was awarded a gold
medal at the international exhibition in Naples®’.

There were crafts that the Armenians simply turned into art. One of them
was blacksmithing with wood, especially furniture making. In the XIX
century, the Kemhachyan dynasty, which founded a factory in the Peshiktash
district, was famous in this arena. The furniture they made was not inferior to
European ones and decorated the Sultan's palaces®. Later, other Armenian
craftsmen gave a boost to furniture making, establishing various
woodworking and furniture factories. The Narlyan furniture factory was
founded in 1866. By the Ottoman government, Narlyan received different
degrees of Mejidiye orders. According to the promotional image on this
facility’s form, the factory operated in two three-story buildings®. The
Narlyan factory was replaced by a large electric furniture factory owned by
“V. Tamatyan and Company”®. In the large furniture factories owned by

8 Uwinnywi. 2010, attachment, VIIL

P REnyp . 1920, 390:

80 «Pwdwhmlyy, 16 —29. VI. 1914:
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85 Scientific funds of the Armenian Genocide Museum-Institute, division 13, fund
number 4146.
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“Ruben Papikyan and Son Company™®’, Zaven Stampolyan®® and Ruben
Petrosyan®’ produced sculptured furniture, window shutters, wooden mosaic
floor coverings, signs, etc.

Building material productions were among the industrial enterprises
owned by Armenians. The electric factory of “Paghtasar Teyirmenchyan and
Sons”, equipped with the latest European equipment, produced tiles, bricks,
pipes, processed various stones used in construction: marble, granite, etc.
They made mosaics. The factory produced paving stones, doors and signs
from the materials that were extracted from the Armenian quarries of Hay-
Gyugh in the state of Bursa®. The goods produced by the factory were
highly rated by the Ottoman government. The company also carried out
complete construction of buildings’'. Harutyun Arslanyan’s brick factory
and grocery store were founded in 1890. The factory shipped its products to
the docks and stores’*. Arslanyan’s tannery operated in Khasgyugh district’.
The slaughterhouse owned by him supplied meat to state institutions. He
was the main supplier of the Ministry of the Sea and jointly operated the
coal mines of Ereile near the Black Sea with the Garamanians™. The
Armenian marble processing factory was operating at the pier in a place
called “Feneri” on the strait of Voskeghjyur. The name of the factory owner
is not mentioned in the notice. It is presented as an “Armenian factory” and
it is reported that it also has a branch in Yalova, state of Bursa. The factory
supplied building materials to construction institutions’”. The lime factory of
“Pailak Golanjian and Company” was the best among local productions. In
addition to ensuring the transportation of its products, it carried out
wholesale and retail sales of various building materials and carried out
construction orders through the company’s architects, engineers, and master
builders®®. Hovakimyan brothers owned a lead pipe foundry and warehouse
founded in 1865 in Galatia®’. A large plaster factory owned by Mkrtich
Alzchyan was operating in the same place’®.

In the factory owned by Yervand Khudaverdyan, rivets used in
shipbuilding, brass and iron grinding machines, and various boilers, which
were not inferior to European ones, were produced. The factory offered
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14 Anahit Astoyan

Armenian ship owners and factory owners to repair ships and various
machines with the help of skilled machinists’. The agricultural machine
named “Motel Turkey” created by inventors Mikayel Tonikyan and his sons
separated 300 kilograms of wheat, barley, oat, and flax grains from the grain
per day. This machine greatly facilitated the work of farmers, and the
wealthiest farm owners bought them. The inventors prepared a catalog of their
products, which was sent to the people who wanted to buy their machine'®.

Since 1550, members of the Zilchyan family have been engaged in
cymbal-making in the Samatia district of Constantinople. The cymbals
produced by Zilchyans were superior to the products of the world’s leading
cymbal manufacturers in terms of their delicate sound and durability'".
Zilchyans had two factories for the production of cymbals in Constantinople
in 1914. The cymbals bearing the Zilchyan engraving are still used today in
many symphonic, brass, and pop bands worldwide'**. The gramophone discs
produced by the “Antelip” store owned by Martiros Peilleryan were not
inferior to the European ones in terms of sound. Various musical instruments
were made here'®.

In 1889, the “Aris and Company” steam factory, based on European
methods, produced various perfumes, soaps, washing powder, scented and
colored candles, tin, wooden and cardboard boxes, necessary accessories for
lamps, etc. The products of this factory, having participated in exhibitions of
similar products in Chicago, Paris, Athens, Bordeaux, and Constantinople,
received gold and silver medals in 1900-1904'*. The factory published a
catalog of its products, which was delivered free of charge to customers'®.

Armenian diamond workers in Constantinople were as famous as
Armenian jewelers. Constantinople Armenians have been engaged in diamond
making since the beginning of the 20th century. Garnik Arsenyan, who
studied this profession in Paris, made a significant contribution to the
establishment and expansion of this craft in Constantinople and transferred his
skills to dozens of Armenians in the city'”. Armenian diamond makers
competed with their colleagues from Holland, Belgium, France, and
Switzerland'”’. V. Kyumyushyan, who worked in the Samatia district,
founded the diamond factory'® which employed 90 master cutters in 1910'%.
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In 1911, at the initiative of the Armenian “Neptun” company, the lemonade
factory of the same name was founded''’, which produced lemonade and fruit
juices based on mineral waters''!. The factory was sponsored by the Armenian
Bank and licensed by the Ottoman Health Ministry''2. The vodka produced by
alcoholic beverage factories such as V. Alafoyan and H. Antrizoyan’s
“Vatan”'"®, S. Tavugchyan and N. Zalechyan’s “Shirak”''* and Stepan
Perperyan’s “Pilechik”''® were in great demand in the city. The renowned
winemaker Sukiasyan produced white and red wines from different types of
grapes' .

Armenians owned sweet factories that specialized in the production of the
famous halvah called “pishmaniye” in Izmit. The products of the factories of
Yervand Bapuchyan''” and Karapet Karapetyan''® were very famous in
Constantinople. This halvah was first made in 1601-1611 by Armenian masters
who migrated from Western Armenia and Persia and settled in Izmit and
surrounding areas''’. The confectionery factories of Vahan Isagulyan'?’, Sargis
Alamyan'?' and Terzyan brothers'* produced lokhum, sujukh, European
candies, types of halvah, pies, etc.

E. H. Ekmekchian’s canning factory, established in 1900, was equipped with
the latest European equipment and was considered the best canning facility in
the country'®. Hovhannes Yaghshipekyan operated a canning factory in the
Ortagyugh district, which produced canned fruits and vegetables, which had the
company’s branding on it'**. In 1890, Khachik Tovmasyan began producing
tomato paste under his own brand'®. Barsegh Yerkanyan founded the “Ermis”
canning factory, whose products were gradually improved and highly valued by
both Turks and foreigners'*. Hakob Piliposyan’s canned fish was regarded as
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16 Anahit Astoyan

the finest in the city earning a gold medal at the canned fish exhibitions in
Paris and London'?’.

The Izmir-based Silikchyan, Ispenchyan, Qeheayan oriental carpet factory
and grocery store also had branches in Constantinople'*®. Since 1895,
Armenak Aslanyan’s milk factory operated in the Shishli district. The
production was licensed by the Ottoman Health Ministry and was considered
a model institution'%.

In addition to these large factories, there were also small Armenian
factories in Constantinople. Factories owned by Aram Selianyan'’, M. Ter-
Davityan'?!, Mihran Gasparyan'*? and S. Chavushyan'* produced shirts,
pajamas, t-shirts, underwear, bedding, etc. A. Gazayan and M. Danielyan’s
factory produced metal healthcare beds'**. “Ghonchekyulyan and Company”
used French raw materials to make tobacco paper called “Yerevan™'*. The
soap produced in Ashot Paghtalyan’s workplace was in great demand and was
sold in many shops in the city'*®. Founded in 1902, the factory of brothers
Artin and Tigran Ispenchyan produced fishing rods'’. Mrs. Artsruni’s and H.
Garakeozyan’s'*®*, Mihran Poyachyan’s'* and Yervand Poyachyan’s'*" hair
dye factories produced black and brown hair dyes, whose products were the
best in the country and were also used in Europe'*!. “Grigor Mazlymyan and
Company” owned a tobacco factory in Galatia'*?, Khachaturyan and
Poyachyan owned the only electric coffee grinder in Constantinople'*.
Tanner H. G. Brikyan’s workshop produced special slippers for dance

parties'**. St. Prkich National Hospital produced pencils'®, cigarette paper'*°
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and the best matches on the market'’. Shoemaking and tailoring factories,

furniture manufacturing plant and tinsmithing workshop founded in 1899—

1904 operated in St. Hakob’s orphanage'*®.

Other sectors of the economy

Publishing is one of the spheres that contributes not only to culture but
also to economy. In the first 20 years of the 20th century, approximately 70
publishing houses and printing houses, along with 25 bookstores, operated
in Constantinople'”. In addition to their primary functions, they were
involved in commercial activities selling stationery, printing paper, and
printing machines imported from Europe. Simultaneously, in their workshops,
they produced boxes, tobacco paper, stamps, and other products necessary for
the commercial environment.

There was a close connection between publishing and the work of
bookmakers, book foundries, and engravers, who engaged in multidisciplinary
activities, encompassing publishing, commercial, and industrial aspects. To
promote their products, not only bookstores and publishers but also foundries
and engravers printed their catalogs.

Armenian specialists held a prominent position in the fields of medicine,
pharmacy, law, etc., where the number of Turks was limited">’. Most of them
received professional education in renowned European and American medical
universities and acquired professional skills in hospitals in Europe and
America'®'. According to data from 1919, 122 Armenian doctors worked in
Constantinople, not including dentists and veterinarians'>*. In 1914, more than
half of the 320 pharmacies operating in Constantinople belonged to the
Armenians'>. According to data extracted from Constantinople’s Armenian
periodical press advertisements, 50 clinics, and 13 laboratories operated here.
The St. Prkich National Hospital, founded in 1832, as well as St. Jacob Catholic
Hospital, founded in 1837"* operated in the city'”, and in 1918
Constantinople’s “Armenian Red Cross” opened a hospital'*°.

Armenian architects, master builders, and masons played a significant role
in the construction projects of the Ottoman capital. They were involved in the
construction of public buildings, palaces, and mosques. Construction for the
government was entrusted to the Palyan dynasty for generations. Nine
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18 Anahit Astoyan

members of this exceptional family held the position of state architect for
about two centuries, and by adorning the city with marvels, they left an
indelible mark of high art on Constantinople'”’. Armenian architects
contributed to the modernization of Ottoman architecture, and many of the
most beautiful buildings in Constantinople were designed and constructed by
Armenian architects'®.

The Armenians predominantly owned architectural offices in the city,
taking on tasks such as drafting diverse building projects, as well as the
construction and maintenance of wooden, stone, and concrete buildings
according to these plans.

Notices advertising Armenian individual attorneys and Armenian law and
attorney offices were constantly present in Armenian newspapers of
Constantinople. As of 1907, 68 Armenian lawyers worked in Constanti-
nople'” and in 1919, “Union of Armenian Lawyers” had 93 members'®.

According to the data published by the Turkish historian Nedim Karayel,
which was taken from the conducted statistics of the economy of the Ottoman
Empire in 1915, 95-96% of businessmen and craftsmen in Constantinople, the
Aegean, the Black Sea, and the Mediterranean regions were Armenians and
Greeks'®'. However, the Greeks were mainly engaged in the import of goods,
while the Armenians — in the export, and by producing in the Ottoman Empire
and bringing in money, they contributed to the development and progress of
the country'®.

The Young Turk authorities in 1908 started a process of looting and
usurping the property of Constantinople Armenians, which gained momentum
during the First World War. In 1922, after the September 9 Smyrna disaster,
the 10,000-strong Kemal army, stationed in Izmit, had an order to repeat that
disaster in Constantinople as well. Although the English military command
prevented the massacre of the local Christians and the looting of their
property'®, the constant alarming situation created by the Kemal authorities
in the city forced the Christians to voluntarily leave their homes, estates,
economic institutions and leave the country. In order to prevent the return of
Constantinople Armenians, the Kemal authorities deprived those who left the
city of their citizenship'®, and in order to give “legal” grounds for
confiscating their property, they adopted 9 laws “On Abandoned Properties”,
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which enabled them to completely take over their property'®. The Grand
National Assembly of the Republic of Turkey completed the dispossession of
Constantinople Armenians on November 11, 1942, with adoption of the law
“On Wealth Tax”, the implementation of which gave the republican
authorities the opportunity to take full possession of the eye-catching wealth

of the Armenians of Constantinople '*°.

Conclusion

In the Ottoman Empire, the Armenians of Constantinople enjoyed the
reputation of skillful traders and craftsmen for centuries. From the middle of
the 19th century, when the Ottoman Empire began to modernize its economy
and strengthen its relations with Europe, the role of Constantinople-Armenian
businessmen, who knew new trade methods and European languages,
gradually began to increase. Cooperating with leading European and
American industrialists and trading companies, they modernized and
catalyzed their economy and this was especially expressed by the creation of a
large number of industrial enterprises. Showing themselves also as
knowledgeable industrialists, the Constantinople-Armenian businessmen
together with the Greeks were able to occupy a dominant position in the city’s
economy. In order to get rid of their powerful rivals, the Young Turk
authorities in 1908 started a process of looting and usurping the property of
Constantinople—Armenians, which gained momentum during the First World
War and reached its end in the republican period.
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OKOHOMMUYECKA JEATEJIBHOCTDb APMSIH
KOHCTAHTUHOIIOJJA
(Konen XIX B. — Hauano XX B.)

AHAUT ACTOSH
Pe3zome

Kurouesvie cnosa: Koncmanmunonons, Ocmanckas umnepus, apmsne Kowc-
MAHMUHONOJIA, 2PEeKU, NepUoOUKd, Mmopz08as KOMHAHUS, IKCHOPM, UMNOPM,
XaH, macmepckas, abpuxa.

B xonme XIX B. m Hadaine XX B. BBICOKHI 00pa3oBaTEIbHBIN ypOBEHB
apMssH KOHCTaHTHHOMONS, UCIIOJIB30BaHUE apMSHCKAMH TPEATPHHAMATEISIMA
HOBBIX EBPOMNEHCKUX METOJOB TOPTOBIM CO3JAIM OCHOBY JUISl YKPETICHHS
SKOHOMHUKHM KOHCTAaHTHMHOMOJBCKUX apMsH. B Hauanme XX Beka mpeanpuHuMAa-
Tenu apMsHe KOHCTaHTUHOMOIIA, UMEBIINE HA MPOTSHXKEHUU BEKOB pEIyTalUIo
YMEJBIX KyIIIOB U PEMECIICHHUKOB, COTPYIHUYAS C BEAYITUMHU €BPOICUCKIMU
¥ aMEpPUKAHCKUMH MPOU3BOAUTEISIMA U TOPTOBBIMH KOMIAHHUSIMH, YIyUIIHIH
CBOIO OKOHOMHUKY. OcHOBaim OOJIBIIOE KOJMYECTBO MPOMBIIIIEHHBIX TIPea-
MIPUATUH, TIPOSBHUIIN ce0s KaK MCKYCHBbIC TPEANPUHIMATETN U BMECTE C IpeKa-
MU 3aHSUIM TJIaBEHCTBYIOIINE MO3UIMHU B YKOHOMHUYECKOU Ku3Hu KoHcTaHTHHO-
TOJIA.

C 1enpro U30aBUTHCSI OT CBOMX MOTYIIIECTBEHHBIX KOHKYPEHTOB, TIOPKU3H-
pOBaTh 3KOHOMHKY TOpOJa 32 CUYET MX WMYIIECTBAa, MIAJOTypKCKHE BIACTH B
1908 roay Hauamu mporecc 3KCIpOoNpHaluu uMyliecTsa apMsiH KoHctaHTHHO-
OJIs, KOTOPBIM mpoaoKaics u Bo BpeMs llepBoil MupoBoii BoitHbL. [lo3xe oH
MOJIYYHJI HOBBIH MMIYJBC MPHU TMPABICHUU KEMAJIUCTCKUX BJIacTe U 3aKOH-
quicad MpUMEHEHUEM npuHaToro B 1942 romy 3akonHa «O Hajore Ha COCTOS-
TETTLHOCTHY.

Anaum Acmosan — couckamenv Mamenadapana um. M. Mawmoya, HayuHbll
compyOHUK apxugogedyeckozo omoena. Hayunvie unmepecwi: ucmopus Ieno-
yuoa apmsaH, cghepvl oeamenvHocmu 3anaoHvIX apman ¢ OCMAHCKOU UMnepuu.
Aemop 3 monoepaguii, 10 cmameti u coaemop 1 xnuea. ORCID:0009-0005-
7329-8228. anahitas@mail.ru
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